
AGENDA FOR

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Contact: Michael Cunliffe
Direct Line: 0161 253 5399
E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillors : R Caserta (Chair), R Walker, J Harris, 
D.Vernon, Susan Southworth, C Walsh, S Smith, R Gold, 
K Leach, B Mortenson, T Cummings and M Powell

Dear Member/Colleague

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 14 July 2020

Place: Virtual meeting via Microsoft Teams

Time: 6.30 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

Notes:



AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider 
whether they have an interest in any matters on the agenda and, if so, to 
formally declare that interest.

3  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

A period of 30 minutes has been set aside for members of the public to 
ask questions on matters considered at the last meeting and set out in 
the minutes or on the agenda for tonight’s meeting.

4  MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 4)

Minutes of the meeting held on the 10th March 2020 are attached.

5  BURY MARKET COVID-19 RECOVERY  (Pages 5 - 12)

Report attached.

6  REGENERATION GOING FORWARD FOR BURY & RADCLIFFE  (Pages 
13 - 18)

Report attached.

7  URGENT  BUSINESS  

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



1

Minutes of: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 10 March 2020

Present: Councillor R Caserta (in the Chair)
Councillors T Cummings, J Harris, N Jones, B Mortenson, 
M Powell, L Smith, S Smith, Susan Southworth, R Walker 
and C Walsh

Also in 
attendance:

Councillor Tariq, Cabinet Member for Children and Families
Councillor Black, Cabinet Member for Corporate Affairs and 
HR
Councillor O’Brien – Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Housing
Paul Lakin, Director of Economic Regeneration & Capital 
Growth 
Karen Dolton, Executive Director – Children and Young 
People 
Sarah Bruce – Assistant Director, Children and Young People
Lisa Kitto – Deputy Chief Finance Officer
Carole Shannon Jarvis – Associate Chief Finance Officer, 
Bury CCG

Public Attendance: One member of the public was present at the meeting.

Apologies for Absence: Councillor K Leach

OSC.1 APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillor K Leach.

OSC.2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were declared at the meeting.

OSC.3 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

No public questions were submitted prior or at the meeting.

OSC.4 MINUTES 

It was agreed:

That the Minutes of the last two meetings held on the 30th January 2020 and 11th 
February 2020 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

OSC.5 BURY AND RADCLIFFE MARKETS UPDATE 

Councillor Black, Cabinet Member for Corporate Affairs and HR provided an 
overview of work done so far and the imminent completion of work being done by 
Leeds University.

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 4



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 March 2020

2

Councillor Harris confirmed that she had recently been appointed to fill the 
vacancy on the cross party task group looking into this matter.

Members of the committee raised queries about Council support to the markets 
and the valuable role they play, the recent success of Radcliffe Market being noted 
as an area of improvement.  The importance of not replying on past reputation 
and improving the offer was stated; also any changes should consider local needs 
and not be based on a purely academic study.

Paul Lakin confirmed that future offers for the market would be carefully 
considered and local needs considered.  It was noted that there were good 
occupancy levels at the market, past investment in the food hall was paying 
dividends, and data was available to demonstrate the benefits from coach trips 
and other visitors.  Therefore, at the present time calls for rent reductions could 
not be justified without further benchmarking.

However, it was noted that there are periods during the day when there are lulls 
in footfall, such as after 3pm and work needed to be done to look at initiatives to 
increase customers during this early evenings.  

Members of the committee also referred to the previous budget reports when 
carry over of underspend of £900k was noted.  More detailed figures were asked 
for at the next meeting.

It was agreed: 

A further report with more details on investment and subsequent benefits be 
presented to the meeting of the 31 March 2020.

A report on Radcliffe Regeneration be presented to the committee on 31 March 
2020, as referred to at the January meeting.

That the report be noted.

OSC.6 COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER UPDATE 

Councillor Tariq, Cabinet Member for Children and Young People introduced the 
report looking at the framework for the transfer of buildings.

It was noted that there is a particular distinction from the asset transfer of the 
libraries to community groups, in that organisations taking over the management 
of the Children’s Centres needed to be able to demonstrate an ability to deliver 
services.

It was recognised that organisations wishing to take on this responsibility had to 
be able to provide a structured business case and demonstrate a good quality 
offer to service users.

Members of the committee raised concerns about the short timetable for this work 
and asked if any lessons had been learned from last time.  The need to due 
diligence on any decision made was stressed.

Document Pack Page 2



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 March 2020

3

Karen Dolton confirmed that we are in the soft market testing stage, so if bids 
were not received by the deadline or if these were not of a high enough standard, 
the timescales can be pushed back to help the market to be sufficiently developed.  
It was also confirmed that the provision of services is similar to that expected at 
the Sedgley hub which has recently been transferred to the Jewel Foundation.  
Bids are expected from organisations and schools, particularly those where the 
buildings are located on or adjacent to school grounds.

It was agreed: 

The report be noted and that an update on progress be presented to the 
September meeting of the committee once recommendations had been to Cabinet.

OSC.7 BURY INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING FUND 

Councillor O’Brien, Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing introduced this paper 
for information on how the CCG and Council are working together.  He stressed 
that while the two budgets have to remain separate, the section 75 powers allow 
them to work closer together, such as in the case of the Better Care Fund, which 
is important as decisions made by one organisation can have impact on the other.

Members of the committee raised queries about if the auditors had had any 
concerns about finances; if there were any risks identified as the report states 
these are ‘negligible’; and of the liabilities each party involved has.  A question 
was also raised as to why other authorities had stipulated guaranteed efficiencies 
from this way of working, when this did not seem to be the case here.

It was confirmed that the auditors did not have any concerns; that risks were 
stated as ‘negligible’ as it is impossible to say that there are none in any 
transaction; and it was confirmed that while the two organisations are working in 
partnership they are each legally responsible for the balancing of their finances 
and publishing their own sets of accounts.  It was also stated that steps are in 
place to work as efficiently as possible, for example the establishment of the 
Corporate Core has and will bring efficiencies.  The joint working has been 
operational since last October, when the Strategic Commissioning Board was 
established, however, it is too early to identify the overall impact on savings and 
efficiencies at this stage.

It was agreed: 

That the report be noted.

OSC.8 URGENT  BUSINESS 

No urgent business was reported.

COUNCILLOR R CASERTA
Chair 

(Note:  The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 7.30pm)

Document Pack Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO : OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 14th July 2020

SUBJECT: Bury Market COVID-19 Recovery

REPORT FROM: Department of Operations

CONTACT OFFICER: Donna Ball (Executive Director of 
Operations)

TYPE OF DECISION: For information
FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS:

SUMMARY:
This report provides an update on a range of 
initiatives aimed at supporting the recovery of Bury 
Market, which is of interest to Overview and 
Scrutiny.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION
IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?

Statement by the S151 
Officer:
Financial Implications 
and Risk 
Considerations:

This is an update report so there are no new 
financial implications.  The financial support to 
date is explained in the body of the report and 
we continue to monitor the associated financials 
and give financial advice and support where 
required.

Statement by Executive 
Director of Resources & 
Regulation:
Equality/Diversity 
implications:
Considered by 
Monitoring Officer:

This is an update report and there are no legal 
implications arising. Legal advice and support 

Agenda
Item

Overview & Scrutiny Report

Document Pack Page 5 Agenda Item 5



2

has been and continues to be provided on many 
of the initiatives noted, including market lease 
and licence issues.

Wards Affected:
Scrutiny Interest:

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides an update on a range of initiatives aimed at supporting the 
recovery of Bury Market, which is of interest to Overview and Scrutiny.

2.0 MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION/DECISION

2.1 The report outlines the support that has been given and offered to Market 
Traders since COVID-19 lockdown measures were introduced by the 
Government, the COVID-19 control measures that have been implemented to 
ensure the Market is not only a comfortable shopping experience for 
customers, but also to ensure the safety of staff and Traders, the recovery plan 
that is being implemented by Market Management, the Market Task and Finish 
Group and Cross Party Working Group that has been established to consider 
the future opportunities that exist for the Market, and the Capital Programme 
that is underway for upgrades to the Market over the next 4 years.  
 

3.0 BACKGROUND

3.1 This report provides an update on a range of initiatives aimed at supporting the 
recovery of Bury Market, which is of interest to Overview and Scrutiny.

3.2 The Market reopened for non-essential retail on 15th June 2020, apart from 
businesses for which restrictions were extended to 4th July 2020; including 
cafes, hairdressers, nail bars, beauty salons and barbers, as the risk of 
transmission of COVID-19 is higher. 

3.3 Bury Market has been outperforming its peers for many years in terms of 
profile, and providing a healthy financial return. However, the decline of Town 
Centres in general due to the threat of the internet, retails parks and budget 
supermarkets, has led to recent Trader unrest and requests for rent reductions.

3.4 Following the enforced closure of Bury Market, due to lockdown measures 
introduced by the Government in response to the Coronavirus, all Market 
Traders were given a two month rent free period from 16th March 2020 to 16th  
May 2020, which was subject to a review on completion. A decision was 
subsequently taken to continue with a rent free period from 16th May 2020, to 
the end of June 2020 (6 weeks), and to 18th July 2020 for businesses that 
started trading on 4th July 2020 (8 weeks).

3.5 A cross party task group was set up to consider the long term future of Bury 
Market in order to ensure that it remains at the heart of the town’s retail 
experience for the next 20 years and beyond. The remit of this group is set out 
in 7.1 below. 

Document Pack Page 6



3

3.6 The Executive Director of Operations has written a letter of support to Market 
Traders including a commitment to attend the formal trader consultation 
meetings. This is in response to a “splinter” trader group who are questioning 
the validity of the formally recognised Bury Market Traders Association.

3.7 The table below outlines the occupancy rate pre and post COVID-19: -

Date Daily License 
Open Market

Market Parade Leasehold

Week ending 
21/3/20

92% 53% 99%

Week ending 
27/6/20

92% 54% 99%

As shown above, there is minimal impact of COVID-19 on occupancy rates. 
There is a reduction of 1 stall on Market Parade due to social distancing 
measures. 

4.0 MARKET TRADER SUPPORT TO DATE

4.1 The initial two month rent freeze for all Traders equated to a loss of income of 
£400,600. The additional rent free period from 16th May 2020 to the end of 
June 2020 (6 weeks), and to 18th July 2020 for businesses that started trading 
on 4th July 2020 (8 weeks), equates to a loss of income of £318,850. The total 
rent concession to date therefore is £719,450.

4.2 The Market has remained partially open (approximately 12 stalls) throughout 
the lockdown to support food Traders providing a service to our vulnerable 
residents, including home deliveries. Social media support has also been 
provided.

4.3 Regular updates have been provided to Traders throughout the lockdown, 
signposting them to various Government websites to assist with understanding 
government guidelines, good practice and the financial support available to 
businesses, including how to apply for financial assistance. The Markets team 
have also made courtesy calls to all traders to offer support, and enquire as to 
their wellbeing.

4.4 Markets staff have been acting as stewards controlling entry to the Fish and 
Meat Hall throughout the lockdown on behalf of Traders. The Market recovery 
plan includes additional stewards assisting from other departments within the 
Council to control entry and exit to the Market Hall, Fish and Meat Hall and the 
Public Toilets. Additional stewards will monitor hotspots on the Open Market to 
ensure social distancing measures are adhered to.

4.5 Social distancing signage and floor markings are in place to ensuring 
Government guidelines are adhered to, and protecting Traders, staff and 
customers.

4.6 Following the initial Government Support, the Council is processing and 
allocating Discretionary Funding, which includes Market Traders. Although Daily 
Licence Traders do not fall within Government guidance as they do not have 
fixed property costs, but do hold a longer-term property occupation, Bury 
Council will award the equivalent of 3 months’ rent. Open Market Leasehold 
applications will be based on annual rent payments.

Document Pack Page 7



4

4.7 Annual inflation increases have been absorbed for the last three years as daily 
licence rents have been frozen.

5.0 COVID-19 CONTROL MEASURES

5.1 A number of measures were taken to ensure the Market met the Government 
guidance when it reopened on 17th June 2020. These measures included; social 
distancing signage and floor markings across all areas of the indoor and 
outdoor Market, and stewards controlling entry to the Market Hall and Fish and 
Meat Hall, with a maximum number of shoppers at any one time being 65 and 
25 respectively (as advised by Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service). All 
Traders were required to complete a risk assessment prior to reopening, 
ensuring social distancing would be maintained on and around their stall, and 
the open Market public toilets are open on a controlled entry basis with “one in, 
one out”, controlled by a steward. Seven sanitisation stations are also in place 
across the market. 

5.2 The Markets team have also undertaken / implemented the following: -

 Liaison with Traders to identify individual issues, including social distancing 
measures and review of build out in pinch point areas. 

 Clear guidelines have been communicated to traders outlining control measures 
which were required to be implemented prior to recommencing trading. 

 Café owners are required to submit a written plan, including a map of 
stall/shop, demonstrating how they will adhere to social distancing and 
government guidance, including risk assessments. 

 Variations to build out are to be agreed with Open Market Traders, resulting in 
necessary limitations. 

 Stalls within narrow aisles are notified of build out being suspended. 
 All stalls with walk in areas are required to submit a working plan, including 

risk assessments.
 There is strictly no build out permitted in the Market Hall.
 Consultation undertaken with BMTA to consider amending opening hours and 

enforcement issues.
 Complete Risk Assessments for Market Operatives in line with Government 

guidance. 
 No changing rooms permitted within Stalls. 

6.0 RECOVERY PLAN 

6.1 For the Markets team the challenge in the long term is to attract footfall to 
ensure the markets viability whilst simultaneously ensuring the safety of 
visitors to the market. A thorough and detailed recovery plan has been 
developed by Market Management to ensure Bury Market remains at the heart 
of the town’s retail experience.

6.2 A range of marketing, communication and public relations activity is planned / 
already underway, including: -

 Promotional events to bring animation to the Market (phased in line with 
national guidance)

 A local advertising campaign including radio, print and social media to support 
the programme of animation to negate the threat of limited/no coach visitors

 Marketing campaign to raise awareness of relaunch, targeting local residents to 
include radio, print, press releases and social media channels (it is 
recommended that signage is to be erected in prominent locations across the 
Borough (roundabouts/key high visibility locations – Safe, open air shopping 

Document Pack Page 8



5

message) 
 Encourage Traders to engage in social media to stimulate on line activity. 
 Liaise with Bury College to offer website development training for Traders.
 Social Media programme to include Trader offers to drive traffic.

6.3 Amendments are proposed to the Markets Rules and Regulations, including a 
review of current opening/closing times, ensuring consideration is given to the 
government guidelines to ensure compliance. 

6.4 As stated above, significant planning was undertaken to safeguard Traders, 
staff and customer safety, ensuring the Market is a comfortable and pleasant 
shopping experience. (Including signage, sanitisation stations, social 
distancing, stewards, open public toilets). 

6.5 Other avenues are also being explored including the opportunity to utilise the 
coach drop off area as a delivery/pick up area, for which Mill Gate consent will 
be required, and the proposed to introduction of cashless payments at the 
Market Office.  

7.0 MARKETS TASK AND FINISH GROUP AND CROSS PARTY WORKING 
GROUP

7.1 The above group has been established to: -

 To agree a strategy for Bury Market to ensure that it remains at the heart of 
the towns retail experience.

 To help create a vision for how the Market evolves to meet changing consumer 
tastes and preferences.

 To identify big investment opportunities that can ensure the future of the 
Market.

 To identify how the Market can better connect with local residents that don’t 
currently use it. 

 Identify how the Market can adapt.

An initial presentation was made to Overview and Scrutiny in March 2020.

7.2 Phase 2 of the Cross Party Working Group, which was set up to review and 
deliver the recommendations made in the Task Force Report of March 2020, 
has commenced. A feasibility study has been approved to identify the 
opportunities, and investment options that exist for the Market. At this stage, 
further investigation will be undertaken in respect of: -

 The regeneration of the Market, its existing site, site flexibility, and operable 
basis.

 Widening the appeal of the Market to all residents in the borough and seeking 
further diversity of products and services as a unique selling point of the 
Market.

 Future planning in line with the retail strategy for Bury.

Next steps are as follows: -

 There will be short-term actions designed to underpin the future performance 
of the Market.

 There will be larger plans for some major regeneration projects associated with 
the market and the wider retail area.

 A formal paper with clear recommendations will be generated.

8.0 CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Document Pack Page 9



6

8.1 It was agreed at Cabinet in May 2020 that £50,000 is allocated to develop a 
Masterplan for the Market and the Town Centre as a whole, an indication the 
Market is seen as vital to the future success of Bury Town Centre.

8.2 A Capital Programme is underway with £1.38 million to be invested in the 
Market, phased over 4 years. The work could include: -

 Replacement of Market Hall glazing panels
 Open Market roofing issues
 Market Hall toilet refurbishment
 Lift replacements
 Signage
 Market Hall air conditioning
 Basement refurbishment
 Upgrade of market parade area
 Angouleme Way boundary railing repairs
 Market Hall door maintenance
 Additional security shutters and gates

It is to be noted that roofing works in the Western End of the Market are 
complete, and a contractor has been appointed to carry out additional security 
measures along Angouleme Way.

8.3 Other scheduled works include the refurbishment of the Market Hall toilets and 
the replacement of the Market Hall lifts are at tender stage, but have been 
delayed due to the lockdown. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 

9.1 The support offered to Market Traders since COVID-19 lockdown measures 
were introduced by the Government, has been acknowledged as one of the 
best support packages in the Country. COVID-19 control measures have been 
implemented to ensure the Market is not only a comfortable shopping 
experience for customers, but also to ensure the safety of staff and Traders. A 
recovery plan has been developed by Market Management and a Market Task 
and Finish Group and Cross Party Working Group has been established to 
consider the future opportunities that exist for the Market. In additional the 
Capital Programme is underway for upgrades to the Market over the next 4 
years. All necessary steps are being taken to ensure Bury Market remains at 
the heart of the town’s retail experience.

TRACKING/PROCESS

DIRECTOR: 

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Executive 
Member/Chair

Ward Members Partners

6/7/20

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

Document Pack Page 10



7

Document Pack Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO : OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:                                           14th July 2020

SUBJECT:          Regeneration Plans for Bury & Radcliffe

REPORT FROM: Councillor O’Brien (Leader & Portfolio Holder 
for Regeneration)

CONTACT OFFICER Paul Lakin (Director of Economic Regeneration 
and Capital Growth)

TYPE OF DECISION: For Information 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS:

The paper is within the public domain.

SUMMARY: Town centres are vital hubs for local communities 
and the shops, services and other facilities that meet 
their needs. They have been facing unprecedented 
challenges in recent years and these are likely to be 
accelerated by the ongoing coronavirus pandemic.

The Council has a long-standing recognition that 
town centre masterplanning can play a vital role in 
shaping the role and function of a town centre and in 
promoting and stimulating the growth, investment 
and development required to underpin them.

It is now a critical time to refresh previous 
masterplans and work is on-going on a new 
Strategic Regeneration Framework for Radcliffe with 
plans to shortly commission updated work on Bury 
town centre.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

Option 1 (recommended option)

That Overview and Scrutiny note the contents of this 
report.  

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?
Yes

Agenda
Item

Overview & Scrutiny Report

Document Pack Page 13 Agenda Item 6



2

Statement by the S151 
Officer:
Financial Implications 
and Risk 
Considerations:

The funding for work on masterplans for Radcliffe 
and Bury town centre are within agreed budgets.  
Proposals arising from the consultation will need to 
be reflected as part of the Council’s Capital 
programme in future years.  This will be subject to 
the approval of Full Council.  At this stage there are  
no additional finance costs.

Equality/Diversity 
implications:

No

Considered by 
Monitoring Officer:

The proposals set out in the report are in line with 
policy and there are no identified legal implications 
at this stage.

Wards Affected: All

1 Background

1.1 Town centres are vital hubs for local communities and the shops, services and 
other facilities that meet their needs. However, they are increasingly facing 
unprecedented challenges including the continued growth of internet shopping, 
competition from out-of-centre retail and leisure destinations and wider 
economic conditions. As a result, town centres are having to adapt and 
reinvent themselves in a way that is less reliant on the retail sector.

1.2 The Council has a long-standing recognition that town centre masterplanning 
can play a vital role in shaping the role and function of town centres and in 
promoting and stimulating the growth, investment and development required 
to underpin them. 

1.3 Previous masterplanning has helped in the delivery of key regeneration projects 
in Bury, Radcliffe and Prestwich with town centre vision and development 
strategies such as Bury but Better, Radcliffe Town Centre Masterplan and Love 
Prestwich Village. These have helped to deliver schemes such as The Rock in 
Bury and the new bus station and supermarket in Radcliffe.

1.4 Whilst these have proven to be successful it is important that we do not rest on 
our laurels. The on-going threat to the high street makes it even more 
important to plan for their future. This is now particularly important in light of 
the on-going impact that the coronavirus pandemic is having on the economies 
of our town centres.

1.5 As a result, work is on-going on the new Radcliffe Strategic Regeneration 
Framework that will aim to guide and shape the town centre and surrounding 
areas over the next 10 to 15 years. Similarly, work is also planned on an 
updated masterplan for Bury town centre that will help it reinforce itself as one 
of the key destinations in Greater Manchester.

1.6 As national Government has already indicated, it is looking to invest in 
northern towns and it is vital that we have comprehensive strategies in place 
that sets out a clear vision with investable projects that we can use to secure 
funding - particularly those which are geared to support town centre 

Document Pack Page 14



3

transformation. This is particularly important as we emerge and attempt to 
recover from the economic impacts arising from the current pandemic 
situation.

2 Bury

2.1 Bury town centre is one of the key economic drivers within the Borough. 
Despite the challenges, Bury has bucked the national trend in recent years and 
seen significant investment and regeneration.

2.2 The ‘Bury but Better’ Town Centre Vision and Development Strategy was 
originally prepared in 2003 and subsequently updated in 2009. These set out a 
clear direction for the town centre and it is now established as one of the key 
centres within Greater Manchester.

2.3 It is now critical that Bury town centre is fully prepared for the economic 
consequences that will arise from coronavirus and to establish a clear and 
deliverable plan to support economic recovery in the short-term as well as to 
identify the foundations that can allow it to strengthen and secure its longer-
term future. 

2.4 A new town centre Masterplan will play a key role in this recovery process as 
well as being an important tool in demonstrating that the Council has a 
cohesive strategy in place in support of external funding bids.

2.5 As a result, it is proposed to update the masterplan for Bury town centre in 
order to provide a clear direction to the delivery of positive change, improve 
business confidence and encourage quality investment from private and public 
sectors. 

2.6 It will help inform future decision making and co-ordinate town centre activities 
to achieve complementary improvements. It will also assist with town centre 
promotion and marketing and encourage the development of partnerships 
which will be essential if the strategy is to be successfully delivered.

2.7 The masterplan will need to set out a robust and deliverable framework for the 
town centre, including the approach to:

 Its role as a retail and leisure destination, including the future of the 
market;

 Town centre living, including health and wellbeing;
 Commercial development;
 Development opportunities for key strategic sites in the town centre such 

as the former police and fire stations, Bury Interchange, Bury Market, 
Townside etc.

 Parking;
 Urban design, movement, public realm and open space; and
 The tourism/cultural sectors;
 The future role of the ‘historic quarter’;
 Strengthening the evening and night time offer;
 One Public Estate initiatives, including the potential to create a new civic 

hub;
 The future of the education estate;
 Town centre infrastructure requirements (physical/ social/ transport/ 

green/digital); and

Document Pack Page 15



4

 Linkages between the town centre and other surrounding assets and 
neighbourhoods e.g. East Bury, Chamberhall business park, Burrs Country 
Park etc.

3 Radcliffe

3.1 The continued regeneration of Radcliffe remains a priority for the Council and 
this commitment is evident in the draft Strategic Regeneration Framework that 
is currently out for consultation (22 June to 3 August).  This is a comprehensive 
plan that pulls together the various key regeneration components that will 
direct the future growth and development of the town in a coherent and joined-
up manner. 

3.2 Following consultation and once it is fully approved, the SRF will play a pivotal 
role in underpinning the way the Council deploys its own resources and 
discharges its regulatory functions, including the determination of planning 
applications. It will also provide the necessary evidential base to guide the 
investment decisions of third parties.  

3.3 The key interventions recommended in the draft SRF include: 

 Creation of a central public hub within the town centre – this could 
accommodate a range of functions, including office accommodation, flexible 
civic space, café and some retail;  

 Creation of new leisure facilities – this would complement the Council’s 
drive to create wellness centres to help improve the health of the town’s 
residents;

 Refurbishment of Market Chambers building – the aim would be to re-
purpose this building to provide flexible working space for local activities 
and community groups, along with flexible office accommodation for start-
up businesses;

 Opening up of the river – the proposals include improvements to the 
river walkway and a new riverside public space, exploiting opportunities to 
create river frontages were possible; 

 Focussed retail strategy – this would be likely to involve consolidating 
retail floorspace over time and ensuring that the daytime function of the 
town extends into the night time economy;

 Cultural initiatives – this could include a permanent base for cultural 
initiatives, perhaps as part of the Market and Hub buildings.  This could 
host a diverse cultural programme to celebrate Radcliffe’s heritage;

 Revised car parking strategy – this would include creating opportunities 
for sustainable travel options, with bus, tram, walking and cycling being 
promoted in and around the town.  There are opportunities to develop or 
re-purpose some of the towns surface car parks;

 Public realm improvements – it is proposed that a series of distinctive 
public open spaces should be central to the vision, to help with movement 
through the town and improve the visitor experience / create investor 
confidence.  This would include key focal points, such as the Piazza and 
civic spaces, and key routes, such as Blackburn Street;

Document Pack Page 16



5

 Marketing strategy – building on the recent Branding of Radcliffe, this 
needs to form an integral part of the wider regeneration strategies to create 
a real local distinctiveness for the town and to attract investment;

 Secondary school – the proposals for a new secondary school in Radcliffe 
will be key to helping to improve educational attainment in the town and 
providing a sense of pride in the town. The provision of a new secondary 
school in Radcliffe will also reduce the need for existing and potential future 
Radcliffe residents from having to travel to schools outside of the town; 

 Brownfield development – as part of the housing delivery it is proposed 
that there are a number of key brownfield sites that should be utilised to 
deliver a range of different housing types in and around the town, including 
affordable homes for young families;

 Infrastructure improvements – the draft SRF proposes a range of 
infrastructure interventions, including transport and movement 
opportunities, digital infrastructure to ensure that the technology is there to 
sustain economic growth and proposals to make use of renewable energy 
and low carbon solutions; and 

 Employment growth – it is proposed that employment opportunities are 
created in the town centre, from smaller start-up businesses to larger 
employment users in the hub.  This could involve the consolidation and 
improvements to the towns existing industrial space to make it attractive to 
modern day employment. 

Council Investment Fund 

3.4 Given the projects emerging through the SRF and the Council’s continued 
commitment to the ongoing regeneration of Radcliffe, it is anticipated that 
significant funding will be required to ensure that key regeneration projects are 
progressed and delivered.

3.5 As reported to Cabinet in March and June, the Chief Executive will bring 
forward an outline business case for the creation of a Council Investment Fund 
that would be used to leverage third party funding to support appropriate 
interventions in key investment areas including Radcliffe Town Centre. 

Document Pack Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 BURY MARKET COVID-19 RECOVERY
	6 Regeneration going forward for Bury & Radcliffe

